New York State Office of Information Technology Services
RFP C000382 ITS Service Desk Support and End User Break-Fix Support Services
Questions and Answers
As of January 15, 2016


Question 1:  
Vendor requests that the minimum qualifications listed in section 4.1 be modified as requested below to maximize competition for the State by including more capable vendors that would be forced to No-Bid this opportunity.  
The RFP currently reads: MANDATORY BIDDER ELIGIBILITY QUALIFICATIONS The following are the mandatory minimum Bidder qualifications that must be met by the Prime Contractor. If these requirements are not met, the State shall deem the Proposal as non-responsive and eliminate the Bidder from further consideration. Bidders (and their predecessor business Enterprises) must: 
1. Have a minimum of ten (10) years of experience providing service-desk support services of similar size and scope to ITS requirements as set forth in this RFP, to Public Sector Entities of more than 50,000 users within the continental US. 
2. Have a minimum of ten (10) years of experience providing End User Break-Fix Support services to multiple geographic locations of similar size and scope to ITS requirements set forth in this RFP. 
3. Be registered with the NYS Department of State as an entity authorized to conduct business in New York State. 
Vendor suggests the following re-wording for item 1.   Have a minimum of ten (10) years of experience providing service-desk support services of similar size and scope within the continental US to meet ITS' requirements as set forth in this RFP. Another possible wording is: Have a minimum of ten (10) years of experience providing service-desk support services of similar size and scope to ITS requirements as set forth in this RFP to either Public or Private Sector Entities of more than 50,000 users within the continental US. 
Since Infrastructure Services, Helpdesk/Deskside Services, are fairly standard across industries and sectors, putting a focus on the Public Sector will needlessly eliminate some of the larger as well as capable companies from bidding on this deal.  Vendor does however support many customers in the private sector that well exceed the requirements as set forth in this RFP.  We ask that the State consider our request and make a decision on or before the Bidders Conference on January 8th so that we and other vendors have enough time to respond should the State make this change. As an additional item changing the time frame from ten (10) to five (5) years would also be more inclusive, but this is merely a suggestion having talked with several other large Global System Integrators. 

Answer 1:  
1/6/16:  Section 4.1 of the RFP is revised to read as follows:  
The following are the mandatory minimum Bidder qualifications that must be met by the Prime Contractor. If these requirements are not met, the State shall deem the Proposal as non-responsive and eliminate the Bidder from further consideration.  Bidders (and their predecessor business Enterprises) must:
1. Have a minimum of seven (7) years of experience providing service-desk support services of similar size and scope to ITS requirements as set forth in this RFP, to entities of more than 50,000 users within the continental US.
1. Have a minimum of seven (7) years of experience providing End User Break-Fix Support services to multiple geographic locations of similar size and scope to ITS requirements set forth in this RFP.
1. Have a minimum of three (3) years of experience providing services of similar size and scope to ITS requirements as set forth in this RFP to Public Sector Entities.
1. Be registered with the NYS Department of State as an entity authorized to conduct business in New York State.
Attachments 17 and 18 have been revised accordingly
Question 2:  
Why are you not using the HBITS contract for this work?  
Answer 2: 
1/6/16:  This procurement seeks a vendor to provide a managed service.  The vendor must meet or exceed the Service Level requirements (SLRs) outlined in Section 3 of the RFP.  Vendor’s failure to meet or exceed the SLRs, as described in Table 3 – Service Level Requirements, will result in SLR Credits to ITS.  The Hourly-Based IT Services (HBITS) contract is incompatible with these requirements.
Question 3:  
Will you be using the HBITS contract in conjunction with this RFP? 
Answer 3:
1/6/16:  No. Any services procured through this RFP will not also be procured through HBITS.  

Question 4:  
What is your reasoning for 10 years of experience for the mandatory requirements? 
Answer 4:
1/6/16:  Section 4.1 of the RFP has been revised.  See answer to Question 1.   
Question 5:  
My company currently has several contractors working on HBITS providing Desk Support services under the Specialist title on that contract, will this contract cause the incumbents on HBITS to end their positions?
Answer 5:
1/6/16:  Any services procured through this RFP will not also be procured through HBITS.  
Question 6:  
Our largest client has 24k end users, located globally, but headquartered here in NYS (as are we).  They are a publicly traded company but not in the Public Sector.  Will either of these facts disqualify us from consideration?
Answer 6:
1/6/16: Section 4.1 of the RFP, as revised on 1/6/16, identifies the mandatory minimum Bidder qualifications that must be met by the Prime Contractor. If these requirements are not met, the State shall deem the Proposal as non-responsive and eliminate the Bidder from further consideration.  Based on the information provided, it does not appear that this vendor is eligible to bid as the prime contractor.  As a reminder, interested vendors may pursue subcontracting opportunities.  
Question 7:  
Will the answers provided in the Pre-Bid Conference on January 8 become part of the final contract?
Answer 7:   
1/6/16: During the Pre-Bid conference, ITS will make best efforts to answer questions received by the deadline for submission of pre-bid conference questions.  Any oral responses given by the State at the Pre-Bid Conference are unofficial and shall not be relied upon in the preparation of Bid Proposals unless confirmed in an official written response.  The State reserves the right to change any oral response previously given by the State at the Pre-Bid Conference in the official written response. Only formal clarifications and amendments to the RFP issued by ITS in official written responses will become part of the final contract.
Question 8:  
ITIL is not a compliance framework. Can ITS provide examples of ITIL Standards compliance certificates and issuing parties to which it refers?
Answer 8:  
[bookmark: _MailEndCompose]1/6/16: ITS agrees. Section 2.1, Key Service Element 3 of the RFP has been revised to read as follows:
3. Upon ITS request, Contractor will provide ITS with evidence of compliance with such ITIL Standards.
Question 9:  
Please explain the process with which ITS stock that contractor maintains will be replenished. (i.e., will we be repairing swapped unit or ordering a replacement of swapped unit?  If repaired, who provides the parts?)
Answer 9:  
1/11/16: The vendor will replace the unit and return the broken equipment to ITS. For more information refer to section 2.2.2 key element 30.  
Question 10: 
During a PC swap, what is required for imaging, transferring data, software, and peripheral setup?
Answer 10: 
1/11/16: ITS will provide an imaged workstation. The vendor will be responsible for data transfer, software installs that are not part of standard image, and installing any necessary peripheral drivers.

Question 11: 
Who is responsible for the shipping costs associated with returning units to ITS and receiving inventory replenishments?
 

Answer 11: 
1/11/16: The vendor is responsible for the cost of returning equipment to ITS. ITS is responsible for the cost of sending equipment to the vendor.

Question 12: 
Are large networked printers and MFP's expected to be swapped or repaired onsite?
Answer 12: 
1/11/16: The vendor will attempt to repair on site.
Question 13:  
Can ITS provide a listing of equipment that will be used to maintain adequate inventory of ITS provided replacement equipment?  This will help determine how much warehouse space will need to be allocated in each metropolitan area.
Answer 13: 
1/11/16: The best available information is located in the RFP Appendices, particularly Appendix O, Appendix T, and Appendix V.

Question 14: 
Would the State be willing to amend the language in Mandatory Criteria (as below) in order to enable more bidders to submit a proposal?                                Mandatory Criteria
Have a minimum of ten (10) years of experience providing service-desk support services of similar size and scope to ITS requirements as set forth in this RFP, to Public Sector Entities or Private Sector Organizations of more than 50,000 users within the continental US. 
Have a minimum of ten (10) years of experience providing End User Break-Fix Support services to multiple geographic locations of similar size and scope to ITS requirements set forth in this
 Answer 14: 
1/11/16:  The mandatory minimum Bidder qualifications have been revised.  See response to Question 1. 

Question 15:  
Bullet 3 in this section of the RFP states 'Upon ITS request, Contractor will provide ITS with a copy of Contractor’s then-current certificate of compliance with such ITIL Standards.’ Could the State please provide what it deems as an acceptable certificate of ITIL compliance?
Answer 15: 
1/11/16: See response to Question 8. 
Question 16:  
The example includes expected service levels.  Will the contract call out both expected and minimum % thresholds?
Answer 16: 
1/11/16: No, Expected Service Levels are identified in Section 3 of the RFP, particularly Table 3.  
Question 17:  	
Could you also provide a count of users and the monthly volume of tickets by each site?
Answer 17: 
1/11/16: The information cannot be provided by site.  
Question 18:  
The footnote states after-hours period includes Sat, Sun, holidays and after 5:00 PM.   However, the volume between 5:00 PM & 6:00 PM is substantial.   Do the same incident response/resolution and call waiting SLR's apply during core and non-core support hours?
Answer 18: 
1/11/16: Yes.  
Question 19:  
Is there a categorization breakdown of incident types?  I.e. can we see the types of issues that are driving incident tickets?  
Answer 19: 
1/11/16: Yes, the top categories which are driving issues (in no particular order) are: 
· Password Resets
· Printers
· Monitors
· Internet Issues
· Software Issues
· Data not being accessible
· Network Slowness
· Account Access or Permissions
· VOIP Phone
· WebEx
· Mobile Device Broken
Question 20:  
Could you provide the existing and proposed SLRs for each Incident priority (P1 - P4?)
Answer 20: 
1/11/16: SLRs remain the same regardless of Incident priority.
 Question 21:  
	What percentage of incidents are raised via phone, email, chat or via the portal?
Answer 21: 
	1/11/16: Approximate estimates are as follows:
· Phone 75% 
· Email 7%
· Self-Servcie18%
· Chat 0%. Chat is in its infancy
Question 22:  
	Do the same SLRs apply regardless of channel used to raise the incident?

Answer 22: 
1/11/16: The SLR for each channel is listed in Table 3.  

Question 23:  
	What percentage of incidents are resolved by 1st, 2nd, 3rd level support?
Answer 23: 
1/11/16: This information cannot be provided.  
Question 24:  
	What percentage of incidents are resolved via automation?
Answer 24: 
1/11/16: ITS has automation for some end user password resets, which are not logged as incidents.  The majority of incidents are not resolved via automation.  
 Question 25:  
What percentage of incidents can be user-resolved utilizing user facing knowledge base?
Answer 25: 
1/11/16: Currently the amount is minimal.  We believe this is an area the successful Bidder can improve upon.
Question 26:  
	What percentage of incidents come from VIPs?
Answer 26: 
1/15/16:  Less than 1% on average  
Question 27:  
Has there been any recent automation implementation to reduce ticket volume (e.g. automated password resets, user facing knowledge base, etc.)
Answer 27: 
1/11/16: Not recently.  
Question 28:  
Please clarify what version of ServiceNow is currently being used? Are there any plans to upgrade?  Who owns the ServiceNow platform?   
Answer 28: 
1/11/16: ITS provides the ServiceNow platform.  We are currently on FUJI.  Our intent is to remain not more than 1 version behind the newest release.  
Question 29:  
Do any of the agencies require a dedicated Service Desk function or specialized skills?
Answer 29: 
1/11/16: No.
Question 30:  
Remote access setup and credentials - Could you provide information on what tools are being used now for this?
Answer 30: 
1/11/16: See RFP Section 2.1 Alert Monitoring, Key Service Element 22. 
Question 31:  
Emergency Task Order Form and procedures:  Is there a current Business Continuity / Disaster Recovery plan in place?  Does it cover all agencies and locations?  
Answer 31: 
1/11/16: This is outside the scope of the RFP.
Question 32:  
	Can we get the current ratio of field staff to central service desk staff?  
Answer 32: 
1/11/16: Three Central Service Desk staff to one Field Staff.  
Question 33:  
In items 16-18 on the Calendar of Events table, the schedule indicates a 90 day start-up period and a 90 day stabilization period, creating a 180 day window between contract approval and beginning of Steady State. Based on this, is it the State's intention to request 54 months of Steady State for an overall deal term of 60 months or does the State request 60 months of Steady State for an overall deal term of 66 months?
Answer 33: 
1/11/16: The contract will be for a term of 60 months.
Question 34:  
Under "Alert Monitoring" will changes to the applicable monitoring tools be subject to Section 5.31. Process for Change Requests?    
Answer 34: 
1/11/16: ITS will provide the monitoring tools.  We don’t envision a significant variance which would warrant a Change Request.  
Question 35:  
Will changes to the Priority Sites be subject to Section 5.31, Process for Change Requests?
Answer 35: 
1/11/16: We don’t envision a significant variance to the number of Priority Sites which would warrant a Change Request.  
Question 36:  
Will NYS provide storage space for the NYS owned equipment, or is that to be provided by the Contractor?
Answer 36: 
1/11/16: The contractor is expected to provide any storage space.  
Question 37:  
	Please clarify whether NYS or Contractor is responsible for procuring spares.
Answer 37: 
1/11/16: NYS is responsible for procuring spares. The Contractor must maintain adequate inventory by region to meet the SLR’s. Prior to commencement of Services, Contractor is required to implement adequate replenishment re-order points, controls and procedures that will provide adequate lead time for ITS to procure, image and deliver equipment and any ITS and/or State chain-of-custody requirements.  For more information refer to section 2.2.2 key element 30.  
Question 38:  
Can the pickup, handoff, and delivery of Equipment and any ITS and/or State chain-of-custody requirements be provided now so as to be evaluated as part of the proposal process?
Answer 38: 
1/15/16: The state intends to negotiate the logistics prior to the commencement of services.  The best information currently available is in RFP section 2.2.2, key element 34. The state intends to have the equipment delivered to any location(s) designated by the vendor.
Question 39:  
Item #49 states that baseline for call volumes, document technical environments supported, supported business applications, etc. ., will be validated and finalized as part of the Start-Up Period; if these elements wind up being different from those set forth in the RFP, will Contractor be allowed to make adjustments in price and schedule?
Answer 39: 
1/11/16: No.  
Question 40:  
	Are SLA Credits in effect during the stabilization period?
Answer 40: 
1/11/16: No. 
Question 41:  
Will NYS consider alternate SLA requirements such as application of credits on a monthly basis with a monthly cap, and different allocations?
Answer 41: 
1/11/16: No. 
Question 42:  
	Will NYS consider alternate SLA's that meet industry standards?
Answer 42: 
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 43:  
Will any cancelation under the second paragraph of this section be subject to sub section B, Cause under Section 8.23, Termination?
Answer 43: 
1/11/16: This question is unclear and we do not want to guess at its intent. Can inquiring vendor please rephrase/clarify?
Question 44:  
Please clarify where in the proposal clarifications, additions and exceptions to the RFP terms and conditions, including those of Appendix B, should be included.
Answer 44: 
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 45:  
Will any Federal funded be used to procure any of the Services under the resultant contract?
Answer 45: 
1/11/16: No.
Question 46:  
How will NYS address cost impacts to Contractor resulting from such suspensions (Section 8.22 of the RFP)?
Answer 46: 
1/15/16: Pursuant to Section 8.22 of the RFP, Contractor shall be paid for services performed prior to suspension in accordance with the Contract.  
Question 47:  
Will the Emergency Support Services rates (work sheet 3) apply to Contractor's services performed in the event of a declared emergency under this provision?
Answer 47:  
1/11/16:  Yes, the emergency support services are in effect when a task order is issued per RFP section 8.13
Question 48:  
Is there a restriction from utilizing any offshore resources for back office functions?
Answer 48: 
1/15/16: The question does not define what is meant by back office functions which makes it difficult to fully understand what this vendor is inquiring about. RFP section 2 paragraph 38 provides that the Contractor must host the service desk operations service at Contractor’s location within the continental US. This is echoed in other sections of the RFP. ITS requires that the service desk be located within the Continental US, and that any work performed by the contractor that will involve the viewing, manipulating, storing or processing of New York state information must be performed within the continental US. However, the RFP does not impose restrictions on work performed for the vendor that does not impact New York state or New York state information/data or that occurs prior to the award of the contract resulting from this RFP. 
Question 49:  
Does NYS have remote users (example: home based employees) for which require any depot repair services? If yes, does NYS have a location with space available to allocate to provider for depot repairs?
Answer 49: 
1/11/16: Depot repair services are out of scope for this RFP.  

Question 50:  
What Mobile Device Management software suite is used today? (example: Airwatch, MobileIron)
Answer 50: 
1/11/16: MobileIron.
Question 51:  
What tool is used to conduct the end user surveys, and can you provide any details as to the configuration for how often surveys are sent? Example: one per user per month, every ticket, 10% of incidents etc…)
Answer 51: 
1/11/16: 5% of closed incidents are surveyed through ServiceNow.
Question 52:  
Please provide any details on the number of deskside events for during business hours and for which occurred outside normal business hours.
Answer 52: 
1/11/16:  This data is not available.
Question 53:  
Equipment Storage: Please provide a device list of current hardware in storage including asset information such as Make, Model, Type, Asset Status, and warranty.
Answer 53: 
1/11/16:  This data is not available.
Question 54:  
Please provide a list of locations in excel format with the number of users and devices by type.
Answer 54: 
1/11/16:  This data is not available.
Question 55:  
Please provide a hardware asset list which includes location, make, model number, serial number, warranty expiration date, for all supported hardware (Example: laptops, desktops, Thin Clients, printers,)
Answer 55: 
1/11/16:  This data is not available.
Question 56:  
	Please provide a list of network /server equipment subject to alert monitoring
Answer 56: 
1/11/16:  This data is not available.
Question 57:  
How many minutes does it take to image a system using your SCCM deployment tool today, and can the imaging be completed unattended?
Answer 57: 
1/11/16:  Imaging is not a vendor responsibility.  ITS standard imaging will be performed by ITS during staging. Broken equipment will be replaced.
Question 58:  
Are laptops / desktops using hard disk encryption? If so, please provide what tool and percentage of devices use full disk encryption.
Answer 58: 
1/11/16: Some customers have encrypted devices. ITS is moving towards BitLocker as the standard encryption tool. 
Question 59:  
	How many catalog items do you have in the ServiceNow Software Catalog?


Answer 
1/15/16: 200 catalog items exist in the catalog.  However, the catalog is currently under construction.  Once the requests are submitted the workflow will automatically route the request to the appropriate fulfillment group.  
Question 60:  
Of the Software Catalog Request Types, what percentage of them follow an automated workflow for approvals and task completion?
Answer 60: 
1/11/16: Vendor responsibility will be limited to data entry of request.  ITS will fulfill requests.
Question 61:  
Please provide or describe the processes and procedures for major incident management? Is NYS interested in provider offering major incident management services?
Answer 61: 
1/11/16: No, ITS is not seeking proposals for major incident management.  This is out of scope for this RFP.  
Question 62:  
Is there an Enterprise architecture diagram of the ITSM platform (ServiceNow) you can provide?
Answer 62: 
1/11/16: This information is available in the public domain.
Question 63:  
It is stated in Appendix U that Time Management module is in use in ITS Production instance. Is ITS using the OOB capabilities of this module or have custom features developed on top specific to business needs?
Answer 63: 
1/11/16: Vendor use of the Time Management module is out of scope for this RFP.  
Question 64:  
	Is the HR Management module in ServiceNow being used with OOB features?
Answer 64: 
1/11/16: Vendor use of the HR Management module is out of scope for this RFP.  
Question 65:  
Does your current service management configuration of ServiceNow support access via mobile devices?
Answer 65: 
1/11/16: Yes.  
Question 66:  
What are the different types of integrations are there within your existing ServiceNow environment? Can you provide a list of those integrations? Do you need any B2B, B2C integrations?
Answer 66: 
1/11/16: NYS does not require any integrations with respect to this RFP.
Question 67:  
What is your current asset management process? Do you have your end user assets and data center equipment added in your ASSET database?
Answer 67: 
1/11/16: ITS’ current management process is that all assets get tracked in an asset management system.  There is work in progress to add end user assets and data center equipment into the system.  We anticipate that by the start of any resultant contract, this information will be in the ServiceNow asset management module.
Question 68:  
Do you have any restrictions in doing the development work from offshore locations? (By Development work we mean, any design, configuration work where there is no customer data involved)
Answer 68: 
1/15/16: RFP section 2 paragraph 38 provides that the Contractor must host the service desk operations service at Contractor’s location within the continental US. This is echoed in other sections of the RFP. ITS requires that the service desk be located within the Continental US, and that any work performed by the contractor that will involve the viewing, manipulating, storing or processing of New York state information must be performed within the continental US. However, the RFP does not impose restrictions on work performed for the vendor that does not impact New York state or New York state information/data or that occurs prior to the award of the contract resulting from this RFP. 
Question 69: 
	How is the event management handled today?
Answer 69: 
1/11/16: Event management is out of scope for this RFP.  
Question 70:  
Please provide details on specific security and compliance requirements needed for the ServiceNow solution (i.e. HIPPA, FISMA, FEDRAMP, PCI etc.)
Answer 70: 
1/11/16: Confidential data is not kept in ServiceNow.  
Question 71:  
What is your asset management process for secure sites? Specifically, where technicians are unable to use electronic devices such as mobile phones for checking and updating asset information.
Answer 71: 
1/11/16: Vendors are responsible to maintain asset management information. Asset management process does not have to be completed onsite. 
Question 72:  
What is your current handle time for Level 1 Service Desk Calls? (including wrap up time)

Answer 72: 
1/11/16:  This data is not available.  We believe this is an area the successful Bidder can improve upon.
Question 73:  
While the instructions for Attachment 8, Financial Proposal, requires that the pricing include all costs, including transition, will the resultant contract allow for separate pricing for 'fixed' type costs such as transition and program management?
Answer 73: 
1/11/16:  No, the contract will not include separate pricing.   
Question 74:  
Should any Cost of Living Adjustments (COLA) be included in the proposed pricing or will the resultant contract include COLA clause?
Answer 74: 
1/11/16: Bidders must provide fixed monthly per-user pricing for each year of the 5 year contract.  The pricing provided within the Pricing Proposal must include any and all fees, charges, or costs for the duration of the contract.  The RFP does not provide for any annual price escalators.  
Question 75:  
While the Attachment 8, Financial Proposal, only allows for a single unified yearly price based on the given number of O365 end users, will the resultant contract allow for a more typical pricing structure with separate fees for Service Desk and End User Break-Fix Support Services, along with allowing for adjustments in volume?  Would NYS consider a different basis of pricing such as number of incident with applicable ARC/RCC adjustment for changes in the agreed upon baseline?
Answer 75: 
1/11/16:  No, only the pricing in response to Attachment 8, Financial Proposal, will be included in the resultant contract.   


Question 76:  
Will NYS provide a detailed export of incidents including details such as ticket number, categorization, priority/severity, configuration item, open date, resolved date, closed date, and assignment group? If no, can you please provide a ticket count by priority?
Answer 76: 
1/11/16: This data is not available.
Question 77:  
Will NYS please provide further details on Alert monitoring, including further detail related to how alerts are prioritized?
Answer 77: 
1/11/16: The best information available is located in Appendix R. 
Question 78:  
Please provide further definitions and process related to the status of: Silver, Gold, Platinum for Alerts as defined in the "SCOM Monitoring Support Notes" section.
Answer 78: 
1/11/16: Those terms are provided as part of an example procedure. Definition of those terms is not germane to understanding the requirements of this RFP.
Question 79:  
Will NYS please provide the number of staff currently support the Alerts effort today?
Answer 79: 
1/11/16: On Average the daily support entails 6 staff Day shift, 3 staff swing shift and 3 staff for midnight shift. 
Question 80:  
Please clarify where in the financial proposal table’s provider should include transition pricing.
Answer 80: 
1/11/16: Transition costs should be reflected in Service Desk and End User Break-Fix Support Services pricing, Attachment 8, Worksheet 2.   
Question 81:  
Could the State please clarify the number of days the proposal must remain open and valid?  Section 5.12, item o. specifies 120 days and section 5.25 specifies 270 days.
Answer 81: 
1/11/16: 270 days.
Question 82:  
How is the current support handled? Is the current service supported completely through NYS ITS? Are there any support services outsourced?
Answer 82: 
1/11/16: Support is currently handled with a mix of ITS staff and outsourced resources.
Question 83:  
Is there an expectation that the current service support personnel will have the ability to be hired by the chosen vendor?
Answer 83: 
1/15/16: ITS does not have any expectation and there is no requirement in the RFP that the winning contractor hire any current end user services employees. However, NYS Public Officer’s Law imposes a two year bar on certain employees from performing services for their former agencies on behalf of a third party. Please review Section 8 (a) of the POL to see if such restrictions would
Question 84:  
	Will NYS ITS please consider an extension to the proposal deadline?
Answer 84: 
1/22/16: The Bid Proposal due date has been extended until February 19, 2016 at 4:00 P.M. EST
Question 85:  
Mandatory requirements seem to indicate (if we have interpreted correctly) that a potential contractor must show at least 1 client in Public Sector where we are supporting a user base of at least 50,000. Our current USA service desk supports over 300,000 users and have multiple clients we serve with over 50,000 users each. Our service desk has a group dedicated to Public Sector (we believe the best in the market) that serves approximately 80,000 users, but no one Public Sector client is currently at 50,000 users.  
Question: Based on our above capabilities and volumes, would we still qualify to bid on this opportunity for the Service Desk?
Answer 85: 
1/15/16: Section 4.1 of the RFP has been revised.  The revised mandatory minimum requirements are that Bidder must:
•Have a minimum of seven (7) years of experience providing service-desk support services of similar size and scope to ITS requirements as set forth in this RFP, to entities of more than 50,000 users within the continental US.
•Have a minimum of seven (7) years of experience providing End User Break-Fix Support services to multiple geographic locations of similar size and scope to ITS requirements set forth in this RFP.
•Have a minimum of three (3) years of experience providing services of similar size and scope to ITS requirements as set forth in this RFP to Public Sector Entities.
•Be registered with the NYS Department of State as an entity authorized to conduct business in New York State.
It appears this vendor meets the requirements of bullet 3. We do not have enough information to assess the other requirements.  
Question 86:  
What is the MDM? Platform?  AirWatch? MaaS 360?

Answer 86: 
1/22/16: We've standardized on MobileIron. Any iOS or Android devices that we use are on MobileIron. BlackBerries, both Legacy and 10s are on the BlackBerry management tools.
Question 87:  
Will a list of pre-bid attendees and contacts be sent out after the conference?

Answer 87: 
1/15/16:  A list of pre-bid attendees has now been posted to the website.  
Question 88:  
What is the minimum MBE/WBE percentage?

Answer 88: 
1/15/16: The MWBE goals are 15% MBE, 15% WBE. 
Question 89:  
Any extra credit for partnering with blind/handicapped organizations?

Answer 89: 
1/15/16: No.
Question 90:  
What is the award criteria % for technical, MBE/WBE, cost?

Answer 90: 

1/15/16:  70% technical; 30% cost; no points allocated for MWBE participation.  

Question 91:  
Who are the 9 desk incumbents or are they internal?

Answer 91: 
1/22/16: The nine service desks are staffed by either State staff or contractors we have through different vehicles.
Question 92:  
Will the State/ITS extend the due date?


Answer 92: 
1/22/16: The Bid Proposal due date has been extended until February 19, 2016 at 4:00 P.M. EST
Question 93:  
Appendix L - what does column field average mean?  Is it average call time?

Answer 93: 
1/13/16: No, it is not average call time. We referenced data from the range of 11/01/14 to 10/31/15. Using the first example of midnight to 1 am, on every Saturday in that date range we received 162 calls, which averages 3 calls per the hour per day.
Question 94:  
What is the tool used for password reset?

Answer 94: 
1/15/16: We do not have a universal tool that covers all password resets.  NY.gov tool is described in answer 95. We also use tools such as Orchestrator, SCOM, and Spectrum to reset passwords for other platforms.
Question 95:  
Is there a password reset tool that can be used for all us NY.gov Only?

Answer 95: 
1/15/16: Yes. ITS developed a tool for ny.gov password resets. It will be made available for the vendor to use.
Question 96:  
Is 90 day startup part of the 5 years?

Answer 96: 
1/15/16: Yes. 
Question 97:  
What are specialty apps & HW?
Answer 97: 
1/22/16: Specialty applications and hardware are those that meet a specific business need that are used only by a subset of agencies or users. For example, a printer that is used to print a special form or label.
Question 98:  
Are sites with no backup equipment part of priority sites?

Answer 98: 
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 99:  
Current SLA response asks for 30 seconds.  Industry standard is 45 seconds.  What is the reason for the shortened time?

Answer 99: 
1/15/16:  Our service level requirement is based on industry standard research conducted in 2015.
Question 100:  
Is Service Now Cloud based? How many current users are licensed?

Answer 100: 
1/15/16: ServiceNow is cloud based. ITS will provide the winning vendor the licenses to ServiceNow. As a reminder, in Attachment 18 vendors are expected to describe in their proposal how they will minimize the ServiceNow licensing burden on the state.
Question 101:  
How many and what type of touch labor events are there per year?

Answer 101: 
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  

Question 102:  
Can ITS provide a detailed category breakdown of ticket categories?

Answer 102: 
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 103:  
What is the standard VDI platform?

Answer 103: 
1/15/16: We’ve standardized on VMWare’s VDI platform. We currently have a significant base of users on a Citrix environment. Our goal is to increase the VDI user base to 80,000 over the next 18 months.
Question 104:  
Are user desktops standardized to a particular vendor?

Answer 104: 
1/15/16: No.  ITS expects that desktops will be procured through a competitive process through an OGS centralized contract.
Question 105:  
What vendor helped ITS consolidate?

Answer 105: 
1/15/16: None, ITS led the implementation.
Question 106:  
How many vendors supply the services currently? 

Answer 106: 
1/22/16: Services are currently provided using state staff and contract staff. The contract staff are supplied using multiple contract mechanisms.
Question 107:  
What do the colors in the pie charts in Appendix M represent?
Answer 107: 
1/15/16: The significance of the colors is not relevant to this RFP.
Question 108:  
How are the virtual teams organized as compared to the regional teams? What are the responsibilities of both teams?
Answer 108: 
1/15/16: We only have 4 regional teams, we do not have any virtual teams. Per the process outlined in Appendix S, a break-fix ticket is referred to the appropriate team, regardless of location.
Question 109:  
For the currently-supported hardware - what is the list of printers and specialty items?
Answer 109: 
1/15/16: The best information available is in Appendices J and T
Question 110:  
ITS provides a website to currently supported hardware - what are the other devices in scope that are not listed on this site?
Answer 110: 
1/15/16: Per section 1.3 of the RFP an aggregate listing of currently supported End User hardware and manufacturers is available at https://www.ogs.ny.gov/purchase/pcpurchase.htm. NYS is required to purchase through OGS contracts, unless OGS contract products do not meet our form function and utility. A limited number of specialty purchases may occur through other mechanisms. Additional information regarding specialty purchases is currently not available.


Question 111:  
What designated sources, other than the service desk, provide dispatch requests?
Answer 111: 
1/15/16: Per the workflow in appendix S, all dispatch requests are initiated by the service desks.
Question 112:  
The RFP does not identify legacy installed printers supporting OTDA's WMS system, either upstate or downstate. Some of these printers are pin-feed, out of manufacture, printers and replacement parts available from non-traditional sources, and critical to the operation of WMS now and for the foreseeable future. How does the state intend to provide support for these printers?  
Answer 112: 
1/15/16: The vendor will replace the unit and return the broken equipment to ITS. For more information refer to section 2.2.2 key element 30. 
Question 113:  
What specific functionality is required for the automatic call-back system and when does ITS envision it being used?
Answer 113: 
1/15/16: When call volumes are high the customer can choose to have the agent call them back when one is available stating an approximate time frame. Vendors may propose solution.
Question 114:  
Are the business hours of the resolvers, and escalation procedures normalized and consistent throughout ITS, or will they be during the contract start-up/stabilization period(s)?
Answer 114:
1/15/16: No there is not consistency now nor will there be during the start-up/stabilization period(s). The vendors responsibility is to follow the procedures outlined in the knowledge article.
Question 115:  
States Contractor must provide expert assistance for inquiries about features, functions, and usage of hardware and software. 
This is a very broad requirement, with no apparent limit on hardware and software and appearing to include Level 2 and Level 3 support that elsewhere is retained by ITS. Please clarify the intent of this section.
Answer 115: 
1/22/16: : Section 2.1.44 does not pertain to VIP requirements. Please refer to section 2.1 key element 18 for VIP requirements. 
Question 116:  
Will communication of downtimes or other types of issues be restricted to ServiceNow/IVR or will vendor be expected to send emails/texts/phone calls as well?
Answer 116: 
1/15/16: No, the vendor is not expected to send communication outside of ServiceNow or IVR.
Question 117:  
"Support includes all upgrades, enhancements, new versions and replacement applications for each of the ITS supported applications."
Is ITS expecting that software management will be done by vendor on a request-by-request basis? Is ITS expecting vendor to create group updates to update software globally? If yes, how many images does ITS maintain, how does envision coordination with ITS retaining ownership of images for new machines while contractor is updating deployed machines?
Answer 117: 
1/15/16: No, the vendor is not responsible for these tasks.
Question 118:  
First paragraph states "repair or replace" - section 1.4 "Level 2" states "swap" - is ITS' intent to provide spares to Contractor for full unit swaps in all cases, or is there an expectation for repairs as well at the FRU (Field Replaceable Unit) level?
Answer 118: 
1/15/16: The vendor will replace the unit and return the broken equipment to ITS. For more information refer to section 2.2.2 key element 30. 
Question 119:  
General #3 - should Level 1 of Specialty Apps by End Users be supported at Level 1? Or should specialty apps be supported by an ITS L2 resolver group? Table 2 on p. 20 has Contractor Level 1 responsible for "business" application L1 support, and ITS responsible for Level 2 "business applications" - "specialty" apps not noted in Table 2.
Answer 119: 
1/15/16: The vendor’s responsibility is to follow the procedures outlined in the knowledge article.
Question 120:  
Asset Management #9 - by "maintain", is ITS intending that the activity is to update the Asset Tracking System when User assets are exchanged? Or does ITS intend for Contractor to manage the entire Asset Tracking system?
Answer 120: 
1/22/16: Yes, ITS is intending that the activity is to update the Asset Tracking System when user assets are exchanged.
Question 121:  
Regarding ITS configured equipment in spares inventories: What process is envisioned to update configurations of the devices that are stored in inventory such that old images and the like are not deployed? Will the State maintain responsibility to images and configurations in total, and how often are images and/or configurations typically changed?
Answer 121: 
1/22/16: By maintaining proper inventory levels, items should not stay in stock very long. Using the ITS patching tool the image will receive any updates that occurred since the image was created.


Question 122:  
Do all repairs invoke the 4-hour repair at priority sites or only certain type of repairs? For instance would an issue with a locally attached printer which would otherwise be a Low priority incident automatically have a four-hour repair time if at a priority site?
Answer 122: 
1/15/16: Yes, all repairs will invoke the 4-hour repair requirement at priority sites.
Question 123:  
Will ITS supply current deployment type and image numbers in a region and broken down by priority site so appropriate supply numbers can be determined?
Answer 123: 
1/15/16: The best information available is in Appendices J and T
Question 124:  
Availability of Service Desk - How does Service Desk intend to measure this?
Answer 124: 
1/15/16:   Per section 3.1.1, the reports will be the measurement mechanism.
Question 125:  
"Incident Assignment - less than 15 minutes" This is inconsistent with an email response time of 1 hour. How does ITS reconcile this?
Answer 125: 
1/15/16: The vendor has 1 hour to acknowledge an email submitted incident. Upon acknowledgement the vendor has 15 minutes to assign to the appropriate assignment group if they cannot resolve themselves.
Question 126:  
Service Level Requirements Table 3 p 24 - NBD resolution for locations < 50 miles of Albany, NYC, etc. - in 2.2.1 #19 requirements is for onsite by NBD, no mention of resolution

Answer 126: 
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 127:  
Service Level Requirements Table 3 p 24 - NBD resolution for locations > 50 miles of Albany, NYC, etc. - in 2.2.1 #19 requirements is for onsite by 2BD, no mention of resolution
Answer 127: 
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 128:  
Service Level Requirements Table 3 p 24 - no mention of Priority Site resolution target from Section 2.2.1 #23
Answer 128: 
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 129:  
Total percentages of Service Level Credit % is 52%. Please clarify
Answer 129: 
1/15/16: It is intentional that the Service Level Credits do not total 100%, in order to limit vendor risk.  As stated in Section 3 of the RFP: 
SLR Credits - Beginning with Steady State, Contractor’s failure to meet or exceed the SLRs, as described in Table 3 – Service Level Requirements, will result in SLR Credits to ITS. For each month during the 12-month period, the Contractor fails to meet the SLR Measurement (B) for a Service Measure (A), the SLR Credit will be equal to the Service Credit % (D) for that measure times 1/12th of the sum of the invoices for the 12-month period. If there are multiple occurrence of failure in a given 12-month period, the SLR Credit will be accumulated for each occurrence during that 12-month period. In any circumstances, the total SLR Credits for the 12-month period cannot exceed the “At Risk” amount.
“At Risk” amount – The amount used as a basis for calculating the SLR Credits. This “At Risk” amount is 10% of the sum of the invoices for the 12-month period. This is the maximum amount the Contractor is at the risk of paying as credits to ITS due to not meeting the SLRs during a 12-month period. 
Question 130:  
Contract Term: Are no contract extensions built-in as options?
Answer 130: 
1/15/16: This RFP will result in a 5 year contract with no renewal options.                               
Question 131:  
Please clarify that NYS cannot request pricing information between subcontractors and prime contractors.
Answer 131: 
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 132:  
What weight is being given to the Oral Vendor Presentation and Site Visit factored into the overall scoring methodology? Please provide the equation that includes the 4 components: technical, financial, orals, site evaluation?
Answer 132: 
1/15/16: 30% cost; 70% technical. The technical components are 40% written proposal; 20% oral vendor presentation; 10% site evaluation.  
Question 133:  
Please clarify inconsistencies in Opened Incidents. For instance:
Total opened Incidents on Sunday are 6,157. However, total incidents opened after hours for Sunday is 6,500
Total after hours and business hours tickets is 459,024 while Opened incidents is 499,085.
Also that number is considerably below the 648,000 incidents specified in Appendix T.
Answer 133: 
1/22/2016 - Appendix T is estimated volumes based on a number of factors, while appendix L is a sample to reflect distribution of incidents over time and dates.
Question 134:  
Our company serve over 4 Million+ contacts annually and 1 Million+ users globally across a diverse range of global customers. We have over 2000 Service Desk Analysts, supporting 20+ languages. We have several of our delivery centers certified by HDI. We’ve been rated as a “Leader” in Workplace Services in Forrester Wave 2013 for North America and rated as “Niche Player” in End User Services by Gartner MQ Sep 2013 for North America. In order for us to bring these world-class services to the State, we request the state to change the language of eligibility criteria 3 as following:  “3.          Have a minimum of two (2) years of experience providing services of similar to ITS requirements as set forth in this RFP to Public Sector Entities.”
Answer 134: 
1/15/16: Bidder must have a minimum of three (3) years of experience providing services of similar size and scope to ITS requirements as set forth in this RFP to Public Sector Entities. Vendors not meeting this requirement may subcontract under a prime bidder.   
Question 135:  
For the mobile device management support, do you want us to only triage it at the service desk or do you want us to dispatch and fix as well?
Answer 135: 
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 136:  
There was a statement that there was around 8,000 or so locations identified within the RFP.  Will those be supplied?

Answer 136: 
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 137:  
The set-aside for minority-owned business, was that 15 percent for each category or 15 percent total?
Answer 137: 
1/15/16: Per Section 8.34 of the RFP, For purposes of this solicitation, ITS hereby establishes an overall goal of 30% for MWBE participation, 15% for New York State certified minority-owned business enterprises (“MBE”) participation and 15% for New York State certified women-owned business enterprises (“WBE”) participation (based on the current availability of qualified MBEs and WBEs).  
Question 138:  
Under "Break- Fix" it says response/repair time requirements for Break-Fix services are optimal productivity from installed equipment by minimizing downtime.  This is an especially critical factor in location where backup equipment is not readily available.  What is the required support for sites with no backup? (pg 29)
Answer 138: 
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 139:  
Will ITS provide an inventory per site list of assets?
Answer 139: 
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 140: 
Level 2 End User Break-fix Support - you have indicated Contractor will receive dispatch requests for repair from designated sources, primarily the service desk. Can you provide an example of what other sources would be contacting the Level 2 End user Break-fix support team?
Answer 140: 
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 141: 
Level 1 IT Service Desk - You indicate End Users will be able to communicate with the service desk through a submission in the on-line support portal.  Is this the state's Self Help portal and a part of ServiceNow ticketing system?
Answer 141: 
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 142: 
Automatic call-back System - Can you provide an example of how NYS-ITS perceives this feature functioning in your environment?
Answer 142: 
1/22/16: ITS does not have any specific functionality requirements for the automatic call-back system.  The intent was to provide the customer an option of not having to wait on hold for the next available agent.  Vendor may propose a solution.
Question 143: 
2.1.18 what is the current VIP support process? How are VIPs identified in the current environment?
Answer 143: 
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 144: 
2.1.25 - Is a self-service automated password reset tool available in current environment for NYS-ITS employees or NY.gov citizens passwords?
Answer 144: 
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 145: 
Level 1 support for iPhone and Android - Is this limited to State-owned devices or does this include BYOD devices?
Answer 145: 
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 146: 
Quality Control - Can you expand on what levels of monitoring are required by NYS-ITS?
Answer 146: 
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 147: 
Staffing Skills - Level 1 skills are normally not considered an "Expert" skill level on feature functions and usage of hardware and software.  Can you clarify the skills expected?
Answer 147: 
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 148: 
Escalation Protocol - Has your instance of ServiceNow been configured with Event Management?
Answer 148: 
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 149: 
Emergency Support - Please explain what equipment provisioning entails? Is this procurement of new equipment? If so, what equipment is the Contractor expected to procure?
Answer 149: 
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 150: 
General - Network Printer Support - Are the estimated 10,000 vis NYS-ITS found in Appendix T inclusive of printers?
Answer 150: 
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 151: 
Equipment/Asset Inventory Requirements - Are the asset inventory data fields requested in this RFP currently in ServiceNow and populated with the asset data?
Answer 151: 
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 152: 
Does NYS-ITS have an Automated Asset capture tool that feeds ServiceNow with the requested data?
Answer 152: 
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 153: 
Activity - Is the requirement to validate the device images part of an installation activity or an on-going activity to monitor SCCM end user compliance?
Answer 153: 
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 154: 
NYS-ITS Mandated Training - Will the training curriculum be available over the Internet or will a connection to New York State's intranet be required?
Answer 154: 
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 155: 
Is NYS-ITS's plan for the stabilization period (day 91 to 180) to be 100% operational with all users and cluster or use this period to on-boarding the Cluster over the 90 day period?
Answer 155: 
1/15/16: Contractor is expected to be 100% operational by day 90.  What distinguishes the stabilization period from the steady state period is that SLR credits will not accrue to the state during the stabilization period.   
Question 156: 
It is documented NYS-ITS has 9 cluster service desks servicing 52 agencies. Are calls routed to service desk based on availability of agents or agency they service? (e.g., caller from department of Health would always reach service desk 1 of 9 or they would route to any of the 9 to take the call?
Answer 156: 
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 157: 
What is the tool used for Chat? Will State of New York provide use of this tool for the Service Desk?

Answer 157: 
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 158: 
 What is the size of your current Service Desks' staff?
Answer 158: 
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 159: 
What are the current service desk metrics? (average speed to answer, abandon) Are these metrics met today? Please provide 6 months of metrics results.		
Answer 159: 
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 160: 
 Please provide the locations of the current Service desks?
Answer 160: 
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 161:   
How will the connectivity to the State of New York infrastructure be provided? Will the State provide the network connectivity to our Service desks?
Answer 161: 
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  


Question 162: 
Please clarify site to site tunneling. Is the request to drop a network line from the service provider to State of New York or is State of New York open to other connections such as Citrix jump servers?
Answer 162: 
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 163: 
Can you validate the measurement of Speed to Answer will be calculated based on the following formula? If not, please provide your measurement calculation:   Monthly Average Speed to Answer = Total Wait time for all callers (in Secs.) during the month divided by the total number of Callers for the month. 
Answer 163: 
1/22/2016- Yes, the Monthly Average Speed to Answer = total calls / total wait time.
Question 164: 
In response to Question 8, the RFP was modified to eliminate the need to show ITIL compliance certificates in favor of ITIL compliance evidence. However, requirement 3 in Attachment 19 has not yet been similarly modified. Do you intend to do so? 
Answer 164: 
1/15/16: Yes, Attachment 19 will be similarly revised.  
Question 165:  
Regarding Level 1 ITS Service Desk support VIP, RFP section 2.1.44 States Contractor must provide expert assistance for inquiries about features, functions, and usage of hardware and software. This is a very broad requirement, with no apparent limit on hardware and software and appearing to include Level 2 and Level 3 support that elsewhere is retained by ITS. Please clarify the intent of this section.


Answer 165:  
1/22/16: Section 2.1.44 does not pertain to VIP requirements. Please refer to section 2.1 key element 18 for VIP requirements. 
Question 166:  
	We understand that NYS has consolidated 52 service desks into 9 service desks. Do these 9 service desks follow uniform processes and provide similar level of services? Will the Contractor be expected to consolidate the 9 desks during startup period?

	


Answer 166:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 167:  
Is single sign-on enabled in the customer environment?

Answer 167:  
1/22/16: Currently single sign-on is not enabled in the customer environment universally
Question 168:
Are all end point devices that the service desk needs to support on a single remotely   accessible network?
Answer 168:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 169:  
	Are the 450,000 password reset interactions a subset of 792,000 service requests as per data in Appendix T?



Answer 169:  
            1/22/2016- Yes.

Question 170:  
	What percentage of password reset calls/interactions is resolved by service desk?

	


Answer 170:  
1/22/2016- First contact resolution of password resets will be included in the      calculation of the SLR for first call resolution. Admin and special access accounts will be handled by ITS staff
Question 171:  
Can you detail the functionality desired from the Automatic Call back phone system for the service desk?
	 


Answer 171:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 172:  
Is telecom/wireless expense management in scope?
	 


Answer 172:  
          1/22/2016-No, this is not in scope
Question 173: 
Does the NYS ServiceNow have the capability of the reports and dashboard that has been asked for, or do they want the reporting activity to be done by extracting the data and supplier to prepare it outside of the environment?
	 


Answer 173:  
1/21/2016- The data can be extracted from ServiceNow and other tools to create reports.
Question 174:  
Please share the list of Service request catalogue that is currently being used. Does NYS want any customization of the current catalogue items?
	 



Answer 174:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 175:  
It is mentioned that ITS will follow up with warranty repair or replacement once the equipment has been returned to ITS. Is warranty coordination services out of scope for Contractor?
	 


Answer 175:  
1/22/2016- Yes, warranty coordination services are the responsibility of ITS
Question 176:
 	 Can you please provide details on the progress of your Service Desk chat 	on?
Answer 176:  
1/22/2016- Chat is currently in production and rolled out to three of the nine cluster desks.
Question 177:
 	 Is Chat integrated into the State's ServiceNow Service Catalog?
Answer 177:  
1/22/2016- Yes, Chat is a part of the ServiceNow offering.
Question 178:  
Will all State employees be able to access the Chat system being implemented? What is the projected availability date?
Answer 178:  
1/22/2016-Yes, state employees will be able to access the Chat system. We are currently in a rollout phase. The vendor may also propose the Chat solution as part of their proposal.
Question 179:  
Will the State retain licensing for the Service Desk Chat tool?
Answer 179:  
1/22/2016- Yes, the State retains all ServiceNow licensing
Question 180:  
Could you please provide further detail for the process of in-warranty break fix support?  
*Is vendor required to check warranty status for every swap?
*For onsite repairs, if a large unit (MFP) is under warranty, is the vendor responsible for the repair or is the manufacturer?
Answer 180:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 181:  
The question was asked and answered on 1/11/16: Are large networked printers and MFP's expected to be swapped or repaired onsite? Answered as: The vendor will attempt to repair on site.    
Will ITS be providing parts for these repairs?
Answer 181:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 182:  
If we can repair non-warranty equipment onsite, with little downtime, such as fans, hard drives, etc., would that be preferable to ITS?  Will ITS provide the parts needed for repairs?
Answer 182:  
1/21/2016- No, ITS will only like the equipment replaced (swapped)
Question 183:  
Is it acceptable for the Prime Contractor and significant Subcontractor to combine to meet the minimum qualification in 4.1.1 and 4.1.2.?  ie: one meets service desk experience requirement and the other meets break fix support requirement?
Answer 183:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 184:  
What is the lead time for ITS to procure, image and deliver equipment?
Answer 184:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 185: 
How many people currently support the 9 service desks related to this RFP?
Answer 185:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 186:  
Are Servers expected to be onsite repairs or will ITS be repairing them?  If we are to repair, will parts be provided by ITS?

Answer 186:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 187:  
Could you please provide examples of out of scope services? 

Answer 187:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 188:  
When referring to "service observe" would you like to be able to listen to live calls or reviews recordings?
Answer 188:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 189:  
Are we monitoring servers, routers, switches and ISPs?

Answer 189:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 190:  
Are all monitoring tools on each Virtual Machine, or are they on separate Virtual Machines? 

Answer 190: 
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 191:  
Are alerts aggregated somehow? 

Answer 191:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 192:  
Are alerts automated? 

Answer 192:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  


Question 193:  
You have list Signature and Office of Person Taking Acknowledgement, should this be a public notary? 

Answer 193:  
1/22/16: Yes
Question 194:  
This RFP is very well written and as such requires a significant amount of materials be reviewed and produced to give ITS what is needed to make an informed decision. However due to these requirements and in order to make the best quality solution and price for ITS, February 1 is a very tight timeframe in which to respond.
Our hope is that ITS will consider a 3 week extension in the due date which we are certain will ultimately result in a much better response from us and from all respondents and give more time once all answers are received to react accordingly.
Would you consider this extension period?
Answer 194:  
1/22/16: The Bid Proposal due date has been extended until February 19, 2016 at 4:00 P.M. EST
Question 195:
The RFP states that monitoring systems will capture critical health factors from network, servers, storage and telecommunications devices. The RFC originally called out "approximately 10,000 servers" on p. 14, though it did not specify how many network devices were to be monitored. Is it the expectation that the contractor will inherit monitoring of devices already being monitored by ITS? Or will the contractor be required to continue to add new devices as they are "discovered" or come under ITS management. In either case, please provide the assumption we should use for how many devices of each type (network, server, storage, telecommunication) that need to be monitored.
Answer 195:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 196:  
Approximately 40 of the Priority Sites listed do not have an associated entry in the Port Count document (Appendix K). \Can you please provide an estimated count of State Employee who report to the sites listed in the Priority Site list? 

Answer 196:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 197:  
Appendix M identifies 57 prisons and 24 psychiatric centers as secure sites. Can you please provide the addresses of these locations? Ideally in an Excel format for easy analysis.

Answer 197:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 198:  
This appendix contains less than 1,000 sites. At the bidders conference we were informed that there are approximately 8,500 sites. Where can bidders find information about sites that are not listed in the appendices? For example, OPWDD has many group home locations across the state but no address or port count information was provided in the RFP. Are these sites in scope for services under this RFP?

Answer 198:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 199:  
Does ITS have existing equipment in storage that will be turned over to the contractor for storage in contractor's regional facilities? If so, can you please provide inventory information by device type (e.g., PC, mobile, printer) or estimates of how much starting equipment there will be?

Answer 199:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 200:  
Is it expected that the contractor will support all End User Devices at each site, or do some facilities maintain their own End User Devices that are independent from ITS and will not be in the EUS inventory?

Answer 200:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 201: 
Approximately how many Priority Site incidents are there per month requiring 4 hour resolution?

Answer 201:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 202:  
If possible please provide the annual spend on IT Service Desk, Alert Monitoring and Desk-side support – FTE, Tools and Others for business case calculation.
Answer 202:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 203:  
Please confirm if NYS is open to rebadging of resources? If yes kindly provide the count, skillset and location of employees who can be rebadged?

Answer 203:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 204:  
Please share the list of in flight projects which would have impact because of this outsourcing initiative?
Answer 204:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 205:  
Please clarify whether there is an existing knowledge base, if yes, 
- Is the knowledge base centralized 
- Is migration of existing Knowledge base articles and KEDB required?
Answer 205:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 206:  
Please share the entire incident and change ticket dump for last 6 to 12 months for all the towers in scope.
Answer 206:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 207:  
Can NYS share Service Level performance trend for the KPIs and OPIs listed in the SECTION 3 - SERVICE LEVEL REQUIREMENTS document for the last 6 to 12 months
Answer 207:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  


Question 208:  
Kindly share the list of all third party contracts that NYS would expect Service Provider to manage for this RFP
Answer 208:  The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 209:  
Please confirm if the knowledge transition would happen from a centralized location for all the 3 towers in scope
a. Service Desk
b. Alert Monitoring
c. Desk-side Services (Break-fix)
Answer 209:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 210:  
Do you have an existing Inventory management software or static data sources which can provide raw data to CMDB or you want Service Provider to position the same?
Answer 210:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 211:  
We understand that all ITIL v 3 Processes are implemented and the processes documentation/work procedures is created and available? Is NYS looking forward for the re-design of the processes or should the Supplier follow it as-is?
Answer 211:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  

Question 212: 
Service Provider understands that the following is in-scope under Alert Monitoring services have to be provided:
1.Network -Fault ,Availability & Performance Monitoring
2.Server - Fault and Performance Monitoring
3.Application Fault & performance Monitoring
4.Synthetic Transaction Monitoring
5.Database Monitoring
6.Asset Management
7.Service Management - Incident Management, Critical/major Incident Management
8.Unified Reporting
9.Knowledge & Document Management 
Please confirm our understanding.
Answer 212:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 213:  
Can the tools mentioned in Appendix R be  extended to Service Provider for the current scope? Is NYS open for a shared tools platform where a multitenant tool platform is used for monitoring infrastructure across different customers.
Answer 213:  
1/22/2016- Vendor needs to monitor the tools listed in section 2.1 Key Element 22. Vendor can propose solution
Question 214: 
For Alert Monitoring – can NYS provide the number of devices, type of the devices, and average number of monthly alerts per devices to be supported? What is the resolution done by the Alert Monitoring team and what is the level of support documentation available for the Service Provider? Also please provide the hourly alert arrival pattern for a month.
Answer 214:  
1/21/2016- The best information available is in Appendix T
Question 215:  
In the current NYSM platform setup, please provide more details of what integrations are already there and what are the expectations from the Service Provider?
- Integrations with the existing monitoring tools to allow automatic logging and updating of tickets 
- Integrations with any other third party/ in-house NYS tools/applications
Answer 215:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 216:  
We understand that for Alert Monitoring Level 1 support, the Supplier needs to only perform eye on glass monitoring for the 6 different consoles and create and assign tickets to the respective resolver groups. We also understand that no alert resolution is done by the team. Please confirm if the understanding is correct.
Answer 216:  
               1/22/2016- Your understanding is correct
Question 217:  
As mentioned in the section 2.1 post the revision, can you please elaborate or provide details on the kind/type of evidences NYS will require to ensure ITIL compliance?

Answer 217:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  

Question 218:  
Does NYS through this RFP want to pursue the existing cluster based 9 service desks  model? Or, is NYS ready for further consolidation for a unified service desk as SPOC for all NYS agencies?
Will NYS open to a proposal for a unified service desk for all NYS agencies against the current operating model?
Answer 218:  
1/22/2016-NYS is looking to consolidate to one unified service desk
Question 219:  
Does the current service desk team perform Alert Monitoring activities?
Answer 219:  
1/22/2016- Yes, the current service desk team performs alert monitoring activities
Question 220:  
Please provide more details on the following:
a. Translational Service -
b. Password Resets for NY.GOV.ID - what is the scope for automation?
Answer 220:  
1/22/2016- Per section 2.1 Key Element 33, the contractor will be required to provide translation services at the time of the call. Automation for NY.GOV.ID is out of scope for this RFP, you will be provided with the tools necessary to complete the password resets
Question 221:  
Is knowledge management module of Service Now accessible by end users for self-help/self-service?  Is there any current Self Help FAQ / Database list containing questions and issue resolutions that is maintained by NYS
Answer 221:  
1/22/2016- Yes, the current Knowledge Management module is accessible to End Users. It is ITS' intention to increase the amount of documentation available to End Users for Self Help purposes. It is ITS' expectation that the vendor will assist in meeting this goal
Question 222:  
Is there any automated solution or self-help option for password reset and account unlock?
Answer 222: 
1/22/2016- A universal automated solution does not exist currently
Question 223:  
Are vendor management activities to be performed by Service Desk? If yes, kindly provide the following details:
-No of Such Vendors
-Follow-up frequencies
Answer 223:  
1/22/2016- Vendor management is not in scope for this RFP
Question 224:  
Please provide the average handling time (Average Talk time + Average After call work + Average hold time) and response time for each mediums of support achieved by the current 
Answer 224:  
            1/22/2016- This information is not available
Question 225: 
 Please provide a break up of volume for each of the 9 Clusters/Agencies SD
Answer 225:  
1/22/2016- The best information available is provided in Appendix T
Question 226: 
Please provide the call arrival pattern in excel format and also the breakup of volume for all the calls by priority. Also provide typical percentage increase in the number of users over the next 5 years,
Answer 226:  
1/22/2016- The best information available is provided in Appendices T and L
Question 227: 
NYS has stated "ASA of <= 30 seconds" in NYS service level KPIs. Can NYS provide the current statistics for last 6 months for the current ASA?
Answer 227:  
1/22/2016- This information is not available
Question 228: 
What Percentage of tickets are resolved based on SOPs and Existing Knowledge articles in the current environment at each Level? What is the current first call resolution achieved?
Answer 228: 
1/22/2016- This information is not available. It is ITS' intention to review the current knowledge base for completeness, relevancy and accuracy prior to and throughout the engagement.  It is ITS' expectation that the vendor will assist in meeting this goal...  
Question 229:  
Please provide more details on the type of planned/unplanned incidents/changes that might impact service desk volume and the frequency of such incidents/changes.
Answer 229:  
1/22/2016- This information is not available. Vendors may propose solutions to minimize the Service Desk volume impact as part of their bid proposal and throughout the engagement.
Question 230:  
Are there any "Identity and Access Management" (IDAM) tool used by NYS which needs to be leveraged by SD to provide user access and administration support? If so what is the IDAM tool used


Answer 230:  
1/22/2016- Yes, the only item in scope for this RFP in the area of Identity and Access Management is password reset. The tools are NY.gov ID, Orchestrator, SCOM, and Spectrum.
Question 231: 
 NYS is requesting a first contact resolution percentage of 70%, 75% and 80% in year 1, 2 and three respectively, Can NYS share what is the current "First contact resolution" measured and reported
Answer 231:  
           1/22/2016- This information is not available
Question 232: 
Please provide a list of all NYS's Service-Desk-supported software (including OS, business applications, infra applications, office applications etc.) and hardware  
Answer 232:  
             1/22/2016- The best information available is in Appendices T and O
Question 233:  
Please confirm on the nature of support required for supporting Business Applications. Please confirm on the nature of these applications and number of calls generated for such support.
Answer 233:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 234:  
Please provide location wise break up of users for all the in scope locations listed in the RFP
Answer 234:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  

Question 235:  
Please provide details on the projects in progress - time lines of these projects, impact of these projects on the Service desk services and the accountability of the supplier as expected by NYS
Answer 235:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 236:  
Is there a tool being used to convert emails in to tickets automatically (email parser)? Please specify if the same shall be extended to the Supplier. If not, can the Supplier propose a tool?
Answer 236:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 237:  
What are the current service desk metrics captured? Please share a copy of daily, weekly and monthly performance reports of service desk. How are the reports collected - Automated OR Manual? Who manages these reports currently?
Answer 237:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 238:  
Please provide the key business drivers and any critical gaps/pain areas in the current setup of Service Desk, which needs to be addressed in the service provider solution?
Answer 238:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  

Question 239:  
Is there any recommendation on per user bandwidth requirement for application access? Like 100 Kbps, etc. What will be the mode of accessing the applications by the service desk agent (MPLS, VPN, Internet) during Operations phase? Will the Applications & tools accessible through VPN during Kick off/ Transition Period.
Answer 239:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 240: 
 	It is assumed that NYS will continue to own all the HW and SFW assets (including tools, scripts, licenses, Vendor AMC and support contracts) and Vendor will be allowed to leverage the same at no additional cost. Please confirm (Yes / No). If No, please share the expectations from Vendor
Answer 240:  
1/22/2016- For Service Desk, ITS will provide all licenses required to perform functions. VDI access will be provided, but no desktops/hardware. For level 2 break fix ITS will provide the vendor with all needed hardware and software. There should be no need for the vendor to leverage NYS contracts.
Question 241: 
Please provide the details if the location is a standard location or a priority location for asset inventory
Answer 241:  
1/22/2016- The best information available is in appendices I and J
Question 242:  
Please provide the breakup of IMAC volumes in excel format for the Desk-side support team for all the in-scope locations. For Priority locations, please provide a call arrival pattern for the break fix services.
Answer 242:  
               1/22/2016- The best information available is in Appendices L and T

Question 243:  
We understand that there is no financial responsibility expected from the service provider on the procurement of HW/SW? Please confirm.
Answer 243:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 244:  
Of the total tickets for Desktop support and mobile support, what is the percentage that is resolved at the service desk level?
Answer 244:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 245:  
We see that of the total number of desktops in scope, close to 38% desktops are less than 3 year old. Please confirm all the old devices are under hardware and software warranty and what is the refresh plan for all these devices?
Answer 245:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 246: 
We understand that the tool required to manage the spare parts will be provided by NYS. Please confirm.
Answer 246:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 247:  
Please confirm if all onsite facilities cost and logistics & packing costs will be borne by the NYS

Answer 247:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 248:  
Please provide details on all the end of life assets in the inventory which needs to be supported.
Answer 248:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 249:  
Please provide the key business drivers and any critical gaps/pain areas in the current setup of Desk side, which needs to be addressed in the service provider solution?
Answer 249:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 250:  
Please confirm if the Contractor has to be provide a location for maintaining the spares or will all the spares be maintained at a centralized depot location by NYS? Is there any break-fix support required for the home users? Or only the office locations are in-scope of this RFP?
Answer 250:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 251:  
What Mobile Device Management software suite is used today?
Answer 251:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 252:  
Please provide any details on the number of desk side events for during business hours and for which occurred outside normal business hours for all the Priority locations.
Answer 252:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 253:  
What is the timeline given to new hires to complete mandatory training?
Answer 253:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 254:  
Please indicate the average talk time for each Tier I call type
Answer 254:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 255:  
Please indicate the average call wrap up time for each Tier I call type
Answer 255:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 256:  
What are the items that would be stored in the storage facility? 

Answer 256:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 257:  
What lead time will ITS require to take delivery of removed equipment?
Answer 257:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 258:  
What is the current size of the existing storage facilities?
Answer 258:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 259:  
Can NYS ITS provide contractor’s technician desk space at the larger ITS supported Site locations that have large numbers of supported equipment and users?
Answer 259:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 260:  
Is the contractor responsible for tracking alerts handed to the NYS resolver group through resolution or only log that the alert for sent to the NYS resolver group?
Answer 260:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 261:  
Would NYS ITS consider a two week extension to enable the vendor to receive the answers and incorporate any changes or clarifications into the response?


Answer 261:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 262:  
Does the number of tickets generated include tickets in which the user did not respond in a timely manner to attempts to assist the user?  Is there a current allotted time before a user is considered non responsive to attempts to reach the user?  If the ticket is closed for an unresponsive user, can the user reopen the ticket and would that count within the SLR for Reopened tickets?
Answer 262:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 263:  
We referred to www.ogs.ny.gov/purchase/pcpurchase.htm as indicated to review the list of supported end user hardware and manufacturers; however, can you provide a list of printers and phones that are also supported both by the Service Desk and End User break fix?
Answer 263:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 264:  
It is stated that currently 60% of the transactions can be handled by End User Services Desk staff, and 40% are passed on to other ITS assignment group.  We have a few questions of clarification below:
Answer 264:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 265:
  1) What percentage of these tickets are passed on to the Break Fix Team?

Answer 265:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 266:  
2) Of the 40% that is routed to other groups, are all calls / incidents triaged by the service desk or is there any automation via IVR or workflows that route tickets or calls directly to the fulfillment groups?
Answer 266:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 267: 
Our assumption is that all services must be provided by US Citizens and supported within the U.S.  Is this an accurate assumption, or should a near shore or offshore options be considered?
Answer 267:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 268:  
Are there any millwrights or union considerations in certain buildings or for specific activities that should be taken into consideration?
Answer 268: 
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 269:  
How are the local printers serviced?  Who is responsible for setting up new printers, including physical installation, configuration, print queue setup, etc.? Is that in scope?  If so, can more information be provided on the type of printers, number of printers, etc.?


Answer 269:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 270:  
While not referenced in the site indicated by State of New York, are Macs supported by either the Service Desk or Break Fix Teams?
Answer 270:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 271:  
Can you describe how the calls are escalated to the Break Fix Team?
Answer 271:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 272:  
Is ITS Central team acting as end user deskside support, exclusive of break fix?  
Answer 272:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 273:  
Are the break fix techs located on NYS sites and/or are they located offsite?
Answer 273:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 274:  
Do break fix technicians perform the hardware repairs and/or is State of NY looking for pcs being swapped?  If yes, are there any kind of vendor certificates that are required?
Answer 274:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 275: 
Can State of New York provide the number of after hour break fix incidents to expect?
Answer 275:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 276:  
Is it possible to get an updated copy of the NYS Sites Port Counts that includes the city and county?
Answer 276:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 277:  
Attachment 8 states that that the prices will be a fixed monthly cost, adjusted semiannually in January and July. Can ITS outline the process that will be used to adjust the pricing?  
Answer 277:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 278:  
Would NYS consider a Business, not yet registered as NYS MWBE and pending the status?
Answer 278:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  

Question 279:  
Would NYS accept electronic copies delivered on 2/1 with paper copies delivered a few days later?  
Answer 279:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
Question 280:  
We have a procedural question relating to attachment 12.

The RFP checklist requests a signed and notarized Confidentiality and Non-Disclosure Agreement. The form is actually on a per consultant basis. This RFP requires many consultants and subcontractors and completing this form would seem impractical at this time and in to the future based on the sheer numbers of consultants and the ebb and flow of consultants over a 5 year time period. It would seem you would want the prime contractor to be responsible and therefore we would propose that the contractor, in our case, sign it as the prime contractor. I have attached a marked up attachment 12 that reflects that position. At a minimum, it would seem more practical at this time to provide a statement in response to attachment 12 that would say vendor "will be pleased to execute an NDA if selected for award".
Answer 280:  
The response to this question is currently under development.  We will issue a response as soon as possible.  
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